
1

MINUTES OF THE OCTOBER 9, 2001 REGULAR MEETING OF THE
LIVINGSTON COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

1. Roll Call and Introductions
The meeting was called to order at 8:10 a .m.

Present: Steve Dawdy, Paul Perosak, Ted Westmeier, Lori Cowan, Terry Wilson and Don Tinson

Absent: Dianne McCormick, Tim Peck, and Donna Waldock

Staff: Jennifer Planck (DPW Coordinator)

Guests: Joan Runkel (Handy Township), Cindy Ambrose (Deerfield Township), Bob Hanvey (Marion
Township), Michelle Bury (Village of Pinckney),and Greg Bogdanski (Hartland Township)

Minutes recorded by Jennifer Planck.  The following is the author’s understanding of the meeting discussion.

2. Approval of Minutes from the July 10, 2001 Regular Meeting of the Solid Waste Management Committee

MOTION made by Paul Perosak, supported by Steve Dawdy to approve minutes from the July 10, 2001 regular
meeting.  Motion carried.

Ayes: 6 Nayes: 0 Absent: 3

3. Call to Public

No response from public.

4. Approval of Agenda

MOTION made by Steve Dawdy, supported by Don Tinson to approve agenda for the October 9, 2001 regular
meeting.  Motion carried.

Ayes: 6 Nayes: 0 Absent: 3

5. Solid Waste Challenge Grant Program
a. Approval of 8 Proposals

Jennifer  Planck explained that we received 8 proposals instead of 9 since Howell Township decided not to apply
for grant funding as they would not be doing a Spring Clean-up this year.  Jennifer indicated that a subcommittee
was formed at the last meeting consisting of Jennifer, Ted Westmeier, and Don Tinson to review the proposals
and make recommendations to the full committee.  Once the Solid Waste Management Committee approves, they
then go to the Board of Commissioners for their approval to release funds.  



2

MOTION by Ted Westmeier and SUPPORT by Don Tinson to approve the following funding.

Genoa Township - $2,000.00
Deerfield Township - $3,192.50
Recycle Livingston - $2,000.00
Tyrone Township - $1,250.00
Oceola Township - $2,259.05
Handy Township - $830.50
Unadilla Township - $2,000.00
City of Howell - $5,000.00

Ayes: 6 Nayes: 0 Absent: 3

b. Verbal Update of Revising Program

Jennifer explained that she is still working on revising the program to make the application process easier and
to encourage organizations to develop new programs while not discouraging the clean-up events.

6. Household Hazardous Waste Program
a. Second Collection Event  - October 6, 2001, 9:00 am to 2:00 pm

Jennifer explained that Rich Andersen, the Commissioner liaison to the Solid Waste Program, reported to the
Board of Commissioners that we were interested in seeking outside funds to hold a second HHW collection this
year.  The response from the Board was unanimous - they did not want to ask for money from other
organizations so long as we still had money in the County general fund that could be transferred and used for
a second HHW collection.  Therefore, the Board of Commissioners approved a resolution to transfer money into
the Solid Waste budget - bringing the total available funds for the second event to approximately $18,000.  

Jennifer explained that the second collection event was held at the County Elementary School in Hamburg
Township, which was a suggestion by Howard Dillman, the supervisor of Hamburg Township.  Approximately
215 cars  came to the collection.  Jennifer indicated that not as much material was collected as was in the first
event this year, but it was still highly successful.  No other statistics are available at this time.

.

b. MDEQ CMI Grant Program - Copy of Award Letter from the MDEQ

Jennifer  explained that the county was awarded the HHW grant to establish a permanent collection center.
Jennifer  indicated that we received $85,000 and will be committed to holding 6 collections per year.  Steve
Dawdy asked if enough money was available in the budget for next year  to hold 6 collections.  Jennifer stated
that some of the disposal costs will be paid for  by the grant and the county will have to pick up the rest.  Jennifer
indicated that a location has not been determined but three locations are being considered - former Road
Commission property, Livingston County East Complex, and Recycle Livingston property.

7. Mercury Thermometer Exchange 
  a. Report on Success of September 8, 2001 Exchange - Copy of Statistics

b. Report on Success of September 26, 2001 Exchange - Verbal Report



3

Jennifer  explained that 500 digital thermometers were purchased and distributed between two thermometer
exchange events held at McPherson Hospital and Woodland Medical Center.  McPherson Hospital provided
excellent advertising for the events including flyers, posters and the McPherson Minute on WHMI.
Approximately 650 households participated in the two events and just over 1,100 mercury containing items were
collected.  Jennifer indicated that we ran out of thermometers at both events and there was some negative reaction
at the second exchange event.  In response to the negative reaction and the overwhelming response that we
received, McPherson purchased an ad and 250 digital thermometers to pass out for free. 

8. County Wide Ink Cartridge Recycling Program
a. Verbal Update

Jennifer  explained that the Board of Commissioners recently approved a county-wide program to recycle ink
cartridges from printers.  Jennifer explained that the program is free, and that we may actually earn money by
participating - the county will receive $1.00 for each acceptable, undamaged cartridge received (54 different
types of cartridges are considered acceptable). 

Jennifer  stated that to date, approximately 25 cartridges have been mailed in with approximately 12 being
acceptable.

9. Illegal Dumping Task Force
a. Verbal Update of meeting with Prosecutor David Morse and Commissioner  David Reader

Steve Dawdy explained that as a result of the last meeting, he contacted Sherif Don Homan to inquire about
resources that may be available to target illegal dumpers, to find out if they are pursued and how.  Sherif Homan
indicated that the Sherriff’s Department can seek illegal dumpers, but it is up to the Prosecutor’s Office and the
Courts to punish the offenders.  Therefore, Steve Dawdy contacted David Reader and David Morse to try to set
up a meeting to discuss illegal dumping issues.  Steve said that Mr. Morse was very receptive to any ideas that
we may have.  Steve indicated that, according to Mr. Morse, illegal dumping cases are taken very seriously and
are prosecuted, however, the courts have the authority to punish with probation, community service, a fine, jail
time or one or more of those.  

Jennifer added that Mr. Morse said a letter from the Solid Waste Management Committee stating that  illegal
dumping is a problem in the county and offenders should be punished would help in these cases.  Terry Wilson
asked if there were any statistics or pictures to show that illegal dumping is a problem.  Jennifer said that she
contacted all municipalities to inquire about illegal dumping. Terry asked if Jennifer could send a letter to all
municipalities asking them to quantify the cost and identify common dumping locations which may help before
we draft a letter to the Prosecutor.  Jennifer sa id that would not be a problem.

10. Website
a. Verbal Update - all pages are finished except Waste Reduction and HHW

Jennifer  basically said that the website is still under construction but a majority of the pages are finished.  Terry
asked if municipalities could link the site to their website.  Jennifer stated that the Village of Pinckney and
Marion Township have already placed a link on their website to the Solid Waste website.



4

11. Waste Reduction Guide
a. PageMaker Program ordered to create publication

Jennifer  indicated that she will receive training in November to learn how to create a guide for  residents to reuse,
recycle, compost,  and dispose in Livingston County.  The current database has been entered into the website.

12. America Recycles Day
a. Discussion of Planning an America Recycles Day Event and Brainstorming

Jennifer  indicated that ARD is November 15 and events are planned before and on November 15 to encourage
more recycling and closing the loop.  Jennifer is working with Recycle Livingston to hold an open house with
pledge cards and give aways on November 3.  Other ideas include resolutions passed by local governments with
high school government classes, and  “clean out your files day”.  Anyone with ideas or wanting to hold an event
should call Jennifer.

13. Superior Sanitation Illegal Dump Site

Jennifer  explained that Superior  Sanitation has been operating an illegal solid waste facility for  at least 10 years
in Brighton Township.  In the past, the MDEQ and Brighton Township has attempted to control the problem
without success.  Superior has been issued violations for zoning, burning trash, operating without a permit, not
containing trash, not removing trash each nigh, parking trucks full of garbage in the road, and dumping trash
in the road and sorting the material.  Since Superior is  not in the Solid Waste Management Plan (which is a
requirement to operate a solid waste facility in the county) Livingston County is now joining the MDEQ and
Brighton Township to try to remove the dump site.  A cease and desist order was sent to Superior by the County
civil counsel, the MDEQ will be pressing criminal charges and Brighton Township is determining if Superior
is out of compliance with their court ordered injunction (signed October 2000).

14. Other Matters that May Appear Before the Committee

Steve Dawdy asked if it was the county’s position to not solicit funding for projects from local businesses.
Jennifer  indicated that the Board of Commissioners made it very clear that they support the solid waste program
and if funding is available, will support.  Jennifer stated that donations may be an option for the next HHW
collection event, rather than charging a fee (some residents asked if we accepted donations).

Steve Dawdy and Terry Wilson asked if the regular meeting date could be changed since the second Tuesday of
the month is when the Howell Chamber of Commerce holds a breakfast meeting.  The committee agreed that the
third Tuesday of every quarter would work.  Therefore, the next meeting was rescheduled to January 15, 2002,
8:00am to 10:00 am.

15. Adjournment
MOTION made by Paul Perosak, SUPPORTED by Don Tinson to adjourn was carried.

Ayes: 6 Nayes: 0 Absent: 3

Meeting was adjourned at 9:15 a. m. 


